STERLING CONSTRUCTION CO INC Form 424B5 May 04, 2016 Table of Contents

Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(5) Registration No. 333-195087

## PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

(To Prospectus dated April 29, 2014)

## 4.500.000 Shares

## Sterling Construction Company, Inc.

#### **Common Stock**

We are offering to sell 4,500,000 shares of our common stock. Our common stock is listed on The NASDAQ Global Select Market, or Nasdaq, under the symbol STRL. On May 3, 2016, the last reported sale price on Nasdaq was \$4.31 per share.

We have granted the underwriter the right to purchase up to 675,000 additional shares of common stock to cover any over-allotments. The underwriter can exercise this right at any time within 30 days after the offering.

Mr. Paul Varello, our Chief Executive Officer, has indicated his preliminary interest in purchasing shares of our common stock in this offering at the public offering price for an aggregate purchase price of approximately \$500,000.

Investing in our common stock involves risks, including those described or referenced under <u>Risk Factors</u> on page S-5 of this prospectus supplement.

	Per S	hare	Total
Public offering price	\$	4.00	\$18,000,000
Underwriting discounts	\$	0.23	\$ 1,035,000
Offering proceeds, before expenses, to us	\$	3.77	\$ 16,965,000

The underwriter expects to deliver the shares of common stock to investors on or about May 9, 2016.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved these securities or determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is accurate or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

D.A. Davidson & Co.

The date of this prospectus supplement is May 3, 2016

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# **Prospectus Supplement**

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT	S-ii
SUMMARY	S-1
RISK FACTORS	S-5
CAUTIONARY COMMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	S-8
<u>USE OF PROCEEDS</u>	S-10
PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK	S-11
DIVIDEND POLICY	S-11
DILUTION	S-12
<u>CAPITALIZATION</u>	S-13
UNDERWRITING	S-15
LEGAL MATTERS	S-18
<u>EXPERTS</u>	S-18
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	S-18
Prospectus	
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	1
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	1
STERLING CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.	3
RISK FACTORS	3
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES	3
<u>USE OF PROCEEDS</u>	4
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	4
DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES	5
DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES	7
DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS	10
DESCRIPTION OF UNITS	10
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	11
LEGAL MATTERS	11
<u>EXPERTS</u>	11
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	11

## ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

This prospectus supplement, which describes the terms of this offering of shares of our common stock, supplements the accompanying prospectus, which provides more general information. Generally, when we refer to the prospectus, we are referring to this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus combined. If the description of this offering varies between this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, you should rely on the information in this prospectus supplement. This prospectus supplement contains information about the shares of our common stock offered in this offering and may add to, update or change the information in the accompanying prospectus. Before you invest in shares of our common stock, you should carefully read this prospectus supplement, along with the accompanying prospectus, in addition to the information contained in the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement and referred to under the heading. Where You Can Find More Information in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and any related free writing prospectus filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and used or referred to in an offering to you of these securities. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are offering to sell, and seeking offers to buy, shares of our common stock only in jurisdictions where offers and sales are permitted. The information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement is accurate only as of the date of this prospectus supplement, regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectus supplement or any related free writing prospectus or any sale of our common stock. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since that date.

S-ii

## **SUMMARY**

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus or incorporated herein or therein by reference. This summary does not contain all of the information that may be important to you. You should read this entire prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus carefully, including the risks discussed under Risk Factors and Cautionary Comment Regarding Forward-Looking Statements included elsewhere in this prospectus supplement and the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and other information incorporated by reference herein. In this prospectus, all references to Sterling, Sterling Construction, we, us, our and the Company refer to Sterling Construction Company, Inc. and its subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated or indicated by the context.

## **Our Company**

We are a leading heavy civil construction company that specializes in the building and reconstruction of transportation and water infrastructure projects in Texas, Utah, Nevada, Colorado, Arizona, California, Hawaii and other states in which there are construction opportunities. Our transportation infrastructure projects include highways, roads, bridges, airfields, ports and light rail. Our water infrastructure projects include water, wastewater and storm drainage systems.

We have experienced a challenging operating environment over the past five years due to a variety of factors, including a difficult construction market and project execution challenges. Recognizing this, we implemented a turnaround plan that focused on bringing in a new management team, implementing project bidding and execution disciplines, and maximizing results on legacy projects. As a result, we have experienced gross margin improvement in our backlog and in executed projects. Further, the markets in which we operate have improved, with significant recent federal funding such as the \$305 billion Federal Highway Bill and local initiatives such as Texas s Propositions 1 and 7, which are expected to increase transportation infrastructure spending by approximately \$4 billion, and an increase in the Utah gas tax of approximately \$75 million to \$85 million per year. Continued improvements in our core markets and company-specific initiatives are critical to the continued execution of our turnaround plan.

## **Our Executive Offices**

Our principal executive offices are located at 1800 Hughes Landing Boulevard, Suite 250, The Woodlands, Texas 77380, and our telephone number at this address is (281) 214-0800. Our website is http://www.strlco.com. Information on, or accessible through, this website is not a part of, and is not incorporated into, this prospectus supplement.

# The Offering

Issuer Sterling Construction Company, Inc.

Common stock offered by us 4,500,000 shares

Option to purchase additional common stock

The underwriter may purchase up to an additional 675,000

shares of our common stock within 30 days of the date of this

prospectus supplement.

Common stock to be outstanding after the offering 24,268,724 shares, or 24,943,724 shares if the underwriter

exercises in full its option to purchase an additional 675,000

shares.(1)

Use of proceeds We intend to use the net proceeds of approximately

\$16.4 million from the offering, after deducting underwriting discounts and estimated offering expenses, for working capital, to repay indebtedness outstanding under the revolving loan portion of our equipment-based credit facility, and for general

corporate purposes.

Paul Varello share purchase Mr. Paul Varello, our Chief Executive Officer, has indicated his preliminary interest in purchasing shares of our common stock

in this offering at the public offering price for an aggregate

purchase price of approximately \$500,000.

Exchange listing Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select

Market under the symbol STRL.

Directed share program At our request, the underwriter has reserved up to 225,000 of

the shares of our common stock to be sold in this offering for sale under the Directed Share Program, at the public offering price, to current directors, officers, employees, and related persons. Reserved shares purchased by our directors and

executive officers will be subject to the lock-up provisions

described in this prospectus supplement under

our common stock available for sale to the general public will be reduced to the extent reserved shares are sold to participants under the Directed Share Program. Any reserved shares that are not so purchased will be offered by the underwriter to the general public on the same basis as the other shares offered by this prospectus supplement, except that the underwriter will reserve these shares specifically for purchase by these

Underwriting Lock-Up Agreements. The number of shares of

participants. No participants in our Directed Share Program, including Mr. Varello, have any obligation or have made any commitment to purchase any of the shares in this offering, and there can be no assurance as to the number of shares in this

offering they may purchase, if any.

Risk factors An investment in our common stock is subject to risks. Please

refer to Risk Factors, and Cautionary Comment Regarding Forward-Looking Statements, together with all of the other information set forth in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein, before deciding to invest in shares of our

common stock.

Transfer agent American Stock Transfer & Trust Company.

(1) The shares outstanding after this offering are based on 19,768,724 shares outstanding at April 29, 2016.

S-2

## **Summary Financial Information**

Our summary historical consolidated financial information as of and for the periods ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 is derived from our audited historical consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Our summary historical consolidated financial information as of and for the periods ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 is derived from our unaudited historical consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP. Other operating data is not prepared in accordance with GAAP. This financial information should be read in conjunction with our historical consolidated financial statements and the notes to those statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, as amended, and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2016, which are incorporated herein by reference.

**Three Months Ended** 

	Year Ended December 31,			March 31			
	2015	2014	2013	2016	2015		
				(unau	dited)		
		(In thousands, o	except share and	per share data)			
Statement of Operations							
Data							
Revenues	\$ 623,595	\$ 672,230	\$ 556,236	\$ 126,567	\$ 117,682		
Cost of Revenues	(594,642)	(639,809)	(586,180)	(122,737)	(124,518)		
Gross profit (loss)	28,953	32,421	(29,944)	3,830	(6,836)		
General and administrative							
expenses	(41,880)	(36,897)	(40,951)	(10,542)	(11,603)		
Other operating (expense)							
income, net	(1,460)	252	1,737	246	1,761		
Operating loss	(14,387)	(4,224)	(69,158)	(6,466)	(16,678)		
Gain on sale of securities			91				
Interest income	460	754	879	3	363		
Interest expense	(3,012)	(1,123)	(616)	(873)	(382)		
Loss on extinguishment of							
debt	(240)						
Loss before income taxes							
and earnings attributable to							
noncontrolling interests	(17,179)	(4,593)	(68,804)	(7,336)	(16,697)		
Income tax expense	(7)	(632)	(1,222)		(3)		
Net loss	(17,186)	(5,225)	(70,026)	(7,336)	(16,700)		
Noncontrolling owners							
interests in earnings of							
subsidiaries and joint							
ventures	(3,216)	(4,556)	(3,903)	8	(292)		

Net loss attributable to Sterling common stockholders	\$	(20,402)	\$	(9,781)	\$	(73,929)	\$	(7,328)	\$	(16,992)
Net loss per share attributable to Sterling common stockholders										
Basic and diluted	\$	(2.02)	\$	(0.54)	\$	(4.91)	\$	(0.37)	\$	(0.90)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding used in computing per share amounts:										
Basic and diluted	1	9,375,213	18	3,063,466	1	6,635,179	19	9,760,221	1	8,901,739
Balance sheet data (end of period):										
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	4,426	\$	22,843	\$	1,872	\$	14,919	\$	17,196
Working capital		30,610		52,324		8,686		32,375		37,053
Total assets		266,165		306,451		273,018		284,007		301,001
Long-term debt		15,324		37,021		8,331		27,273		33,477
Total current liabilities		104,311		104,650		105,799		121,363		120,242
Equity attributable to Sterling common										
stockholders		95,845		133,686		128,893		88,904		116,712

Cash flow data from continuing					
operations:					
Net cash provided by (used in) operating					
activities	\$ 8,969	\$ (10,513)	\$ (22,072)	\$ 840	\$ (2,943)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing					
activities	(4,488)	(7,431)	40,633	(2,103)	1,703
Net cash provided by (used in) financing					
activities	(22,898)	38,915	(19,831)	11,756	(4,407)
Other operating data:					
Capital expenditures	\$ 10,748	\$ 16,668	\$ 14,900	\$ 2,899	\$ 1,749
Backlog at end of period(1)	761,000	764,000	687,000	854,000	745,000

(1) Backlog is the revenue we expect to earn in future periods on our construction projects. However, low bid awards that are not officially awarded as contracts are excluded from backlog until the contract is executed by our customer. As the construction on our projects progresses, we increase or decrease backlog to take into account our estimates of the effects of changes in estimated quantities, changed conditions, change orders and other variations from initially anticipated contract revenues, including completion penalties and incentives.

## **RISK FACTORS**

An investment in our common stock involves various risks. You should carefully consider the matters discussed under Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, as amended, as well as other information we have provided in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference, before reaching a decision regarding an investment in our common stock. The risks described below and cross-referenced in the documents above are not the only risks we face. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our business operations.

# Risks Related to Our Common Stock and This Offering

We have a history of losses and may incur losses in the future.

We have incurred net losses in every year beginning in 2011, including a net loss of \$20.4 million in 2015. We continue to use significant amounts of our cash resources to fund our net losses, working capital and capital expenditure requirements. As of March 31, 2016, we had cash and cash-equivalents of approximately \$14.9 million, compared to approximately \$17.2 million in cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2015.

You will experience immediate and substantial dilution in the net tangible book value per share of the common stock you purchase.

Since the price per share of our common stock being offered is substantially higher than the net tangible book value per share of our common stock, you will suffer substantial dilution in the net tangible book value of the common stock you purchase in this offering. Based on the offering price of \$4.00 per share, if you purchase shares of common stock in this offering, you will suffer immediate and substantial dilution of approximately \$1.92 per share in the net tangible book value of the common stock. See the section entitled Dilution in this prospectus supplement for a more detailed discussion of the dilution you will incur if you purchase common stock in this offering.

## We must manage our liquidity carefully to fund our working capital.

The need for working capital for our business varies due to fluctuations in the following amounts, among other factors:

- contract receivables and contract retentions;
- · costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings;
- · billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings;
- the size and status of contract mobilization payments and progress billings; and
- the amounts owed to suppliers and subcontractors.

We have limited cash on hand and the timing of payments on our contract receivables are difficult to predict. If the timing of payments on our receivables is delayed or the amount of such payments is less than expected, our liquidity and ability to fund working capital could be materially and adversely affected.

# Our common stock has experienced, and may continue to experience, price volatility.

The market price of our common stock may decline from its current levels in response to various factors and events beyond our control, including the following:

· operating results that vary from the expectations of securities analysts and investors;

S-5

- · changes in expectations regarding our future financial performance, including financial estimates by securities analysts and investors;
- · general conditions in our industry, including levels of government funding for infrastructure projects;
- announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures, financings or capital commitments;
- · changes in laws and regulations;
- · general economic and competitive conditions;
- the limited trading volume of our common stock;
- our issuance of a significant number of shares of our common stock, including upon exercise of employee stock options or warrants; and
- the other risk factors described herein or incorporated by reference from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, as amended.

Limited trading volume of our common stock may contribute to its price volatility.

The average daily trading volume for our common stock as reported by the Nasdaq during the quarter ended March 31, 2016 was approximately 77,597 shares. Even if we achieve a wider dissemination by means of the shares offered pursuant to this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, we are uncertain as to whether a more active trading market in our common stock will develop. As a result, relatively small trades may have a significant impact on the price of our common stock.

Fluctuations in our revenues, operating results and backlog may lead to reduced prices for our common stock.

Because our operating results are primarily generated from a limited number of significant construction contracts, operating results in any given fiscal quarter can vary depending on the progress achieved and changes in the estimated profitability of those particular contracts being reported. Progress on contracts may also be delayed by unanticipated adverse weather conditions. Such delays, if they occur, may result in fluctuating quarterly operating results and reduced profitability, which may in turn lead to reduced prices for our common stock.

Over significant periods of time, various factors beyond our control that are described in this prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated herein by reference have adversely affected the levels of transportation and water infrastructure capital expenditures in our markets, reducing bidding opportunities to replace backlog and increasing competition for new projects. Decreases in, or failure to attain anticipated levels of, revenues, operating results or backlog could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

We currently do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock and, consequently, you will achieve a positive return on your investment in our common stock only if the market price of our common stock appreciates above the price that you pay for it.

We have never paid any cash dividends on our common stock. For the foreseeable future, we intend to retain any earnings in our business, and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends. Whether or not we declare any dividends will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors considering then-existing conditions, including our financial condition and results of operations, capital requirements, bonding prospects, contractual restrictions (including those under our equipment-based credit facility, as defined below), business prospects and other factors that our Board of Directors considers relevant. Consequently, your only opportunity to achieve a return on your investment in our company will be if the market price of our common stock appreciates and you are able to sell your shares at a profit.

Participants in our Directed Share Program who are executive officers or members of our board of directors will execute a lock-up agreement requiring that they hold their shares for a minimum of 90 days following the date of this prospectus supplement and accordingly will be subject to market risks not imposed on other investors in this offering.

At our request, the underwriter has reserved up to 225,000 of the shares of our common stock offered by this prospectus supplement for sale to current directors, officers, employees, and related persons in a Directed Share Program. Each purchaser of shares in the Directed Share Program who is one of our directors or executive officers will be subject to the lock-up provisions described below and will generally not be able to, directly or indirectly, offer, sell or otherwise dispose of any shares of common stock or any securities which may be converted into or exchanged or exercised for any such shares of common stock, or enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to another person, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of our common stock for a period of 90 days from the date of this prospectus supplement (subject to possible extension) without the prior written consent of D.A. Davidson & Co., as the underwriter. As a result of this restriction, such purchasers may face risks not faced by other investors who have the right to sell their shares at any time following this offering. These risks include the market risk of holding our shares of common stock during the period that the lock-up restrictions are in effect.

# Future sales or the possibility of future sales of our common stock in the public market could lower our stock price.

Subject to any shares purchased in the Directed Share Program, our directors and executive officers will beneficially own approximately 1,055,240 shares of our common stock after completion of this offering. These stockholders will be free to sell those shares, subject to the limitations of Rule 144 or Rule 144(k) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and, subject to certain exceptions, the 90-day lock-up agreements that these stockholders have entered into with the underwriter. Registration of these restricted shares of common stock would permit their sale into the public market immediately. We cannot predict when these stockholders may sell their shares or in what volumes. However, the market price of our common stock could decline significantly if these stockholders sell a large number of shares into the public market after this offering or if the market believes that these sales may occur.

We may also issue our common stock from time to time as consideration for future acquisitions and investments. In the event that any such acquisition or investment is significant, the number of shares of our common stock that we may issue could in turn be significant. In addition, we may also grant registration rights covering those shares in connection with any such acquisition and investment.

We cannot predict the size of future issuances of our common stock or the effect, if any, that future issuances and sales of our common stock will have on the market price of our common stock. Sales of substantial amounts of our common stock (including shares of our common stock issued in connection with an acquisition or compensation or incentive plan), or the perception that sales could occur, may adversely affect prevailing market prices for our common stock.

## Delaware law and our charter documents may impede or discourage a takeover or change of control.

Certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation, our bylaws and the provisions of Delaware law, individually or collectively, may impede a merger, takeover or other business combination involving us or discourage a potential acquirer from making a tender offer for our common stock, which could affect the market price of our common stock.

## CAUTIONARY COMMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated herein and therein by reference include statements that are, or may be considered to be, forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. These forward-looking statements are included throughout this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated herein and therein by reference and relate to matters such as our industry, business strategy, goals and expectations concerning our market position, future operations, margins, profitability, capital expenditures, liquidity and capital resources and other financial and operating information. We have used the words anticipate, assume, believe, budget, can, continue. could. estimate. should, will, would and similar terms and phrases to idintend, may, plan, potential, predict, project, forward-looking statements in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated herein and therein by reference.

Forward-looking statements reflect our expectations as of the dates of the documents including such statements regarding future events, results or outcomes. These expectations may or may not be realized. Some of these expectations may be based upon assumptions or judgments that prove to be incorrect. In addition, our business and operations involve numerous risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, that could result in our expectations not being realized or otherwise could materially affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Actual events, results and outcomes may differ materially from our expectations due to a variety of factors. Although it is not possible to identify all of these factors, they include, among others, the following:

- changes in general economic conditions, including recessions, reductions in federal, state and local government funding for infrastructure services and changes in those governments budgets, practices, laws and regulations;
- delays or difficulties related to the completion of our projects, including additional costs, reductions in revenues or the payment of liquidated damages, or delays or difficulties related to obtaining required governmental permits and approvals;
- actions of suppliers, subcontractors, design engineers, joint venture partners, customers, competitors, banks, surety companies and others which are beyond our control, including suppliers, subcontractors, and joint venture partners failure to perform;
- factors that affect the accuracy of estimates inherent in our bidding for contracts, estimates of backlog, percentage-of-completion accounting policies, including onsite conditions that differ materially from those assumed in our original bids, contract modifications, mechanical problems with our machinery or equipment and effects of other risks discussed in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated herein and therein by reference;

- · design/build contracts which subject us to the risk of design errors and omissions;
- cost escalations associated with our contracts, including changes in availability, proximity and cost of
  materials such as steel, cement, concrete, aggregates, oil, fuel and other construction materials, and cost
  escalations associated with subcontractors and labor;
- · our dependence on a limited number of significant customers;
- adverse weather conditions; although we prepare our budgets and bid contracts based on historical rain and snowfall patterns, the incidence of rain, snow, hurricanes, etc., may differ materially from these expectations;

S-8

- the presence of competitors with greater financial resources or lower margin requirements than ours, and the impact of competitive bidders on our ability to obtain new backlog at reasonable margins acceptable to us;
- our degree of success in identifying, financing, completing and integrating acquisitions;
- citations that may be issued by any governmental authority, including the Occupational Safety and Health Administration:
- federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations, which can result in penalties and/or termination of contracts as well as civil and criminal liability;
- adverse economic conditions in our markets; and
- the other factors stated in or incorporated by reference as described under Risk Factors in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated herein and therein by reference.
  In reading this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated herein and therein by reference, you should consider these factors carefully in evaluating any forward-looking statements, and you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. Although we believe that our plans, intentions and expectations reflected in, or suggested by, the forward-looking statements that we make in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated herein and therein by reference are reasonable, we can provide no assurance that they will be achieved.

The forward-looking statements included in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and in the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein are made only as of the dates hereof or thereof, and we undertake no obligation to update any information contained in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus or in the documents incorporated herein or therein by reference or to publicly release the results of any revisions to any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that occur, or that we become aware of after the date of this prospectus supplement, except as may be required by applicable securities laws.

S-9

## **USE OF PROCEEDS**

We estimate that our net proceeds from the sale of 4,500,000 shares of our common stock in this offering will be approximately \$16.4 million (\$19.0 million if the underwriter s option to purchase additional shares is exercised in full), after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and estimated offering expenses.

We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering:

- for working capital;
- to repay indebtedness outstanding under the revolving loan portion of our equipment-based credit facility; and
- · for general corporate purposes.

At March 31, 2016, we had \$30.0 million of borrowings outstanding under our \$40.0 million loan and security agreement, consisting of a \$20.0 million term loan and \$20.0 million revolving loan (combined, our equipment-based credit facility ), with Nations Fund I, LLC, as a lender and Nations Equipment Finance, LLC, as agent for the lenders from time to time party thereto. The aggregate outstanding balances of our equipment-based credit facility may not exceed the lesser of \$40.0 million or 65% of the appraised value of the collateral pledged for the loans. As of March 31, 2016, borrowings under our equipment-based credit facility bore interest at an average rate of 12%. Borrowings under our equipment-based credit facility will be used exclusively for business or commercial purposes, to finance the acquisition of equipment and/or to reimburse us with respect to the acquisition cost of such equipment, and for general working capital. Outstanding indebtedness under the revolving loan portion of our equipment-based credit facility is payable on May 29, 2019. The actual amount of net proceeds from the offering used to repay indebtedness under the revolving loan portion of our equipment-based credit facility will depend on the amount of borrowings outstanding under such revolving loan at the time of the receipt of proceeds from the sale of shares of our common stock in this offering.

S-10

## PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is traded on The NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol STRL. The quarterly market high and low sales prices for our common stock for 2014, 2015 and 2016 are summarized below:

	Pr	ice per share
	High	Low
2016		
Second Quarter (through May 3, 2016)	\$ 6.28	\$ 4.29
First Quarter	\$ 6.48	\$ 4.11
2015		
Fourth Quarter	\$ 6.40	\$ 3.87
Third Quarter	\$ 5.50	\$ 3.72
Second Quarter	\$ 4.80	\$ 3.26
First Quarter	\$ 6.41	\$ 2.41
2014		
Fourth Quarter	\$ 9.15	\$ 5.67
Third Quarter	\$ 9.88	\$ 7.46
Second Quarter	\$ 9.60	\$ 6.78
First Quarter	\$ 11.63	\$ 8.67

On May 3, 2016, the closing sale price of our common stock as reported on NASDAQ was \$4.31 per share. As of February 29, 2016, there were approximately 863 holders of record of our common stock. The number of record holders does not include holders of shares in street name or persons, partnerships, associations, corporations or other entities identified in security position listing maintained by depositories.

## DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never paid any cash dividends on our common stock. For the foreseeable future, we intend to retain any earnings in our business, and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends. Whether or not we declare any dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors considering then-existing conditions, including the Company s financial condition and results of operations, capital requirements, bonding prospects, contractual restrictions (including those under our equipment-based credit facility), business prospects and other factors that our Board of Directors considers relevant.

S-11

## **DILUTION**

The Company s unaudited net tangible book value as of March 31, 2016 was \$34.1 million, or \$1.72 per share. Net tangible book value per share represents the total amount of our tangible assets reduced by the total amount of our liabilities and divided by the number of shares outstanding on March 31, 2016 of 19,768,724.

Our unaudited net tangible book value as of March 31, 2016, as adjusted after giving effect to the issuance and sale by us of the 4,500,000 shares of common stock in this offering, at a public offering price of \$4.00 per share, less estimated underwriting discounts and estimated offering expenses would be \$50.5 million, or \$2.08 per share, based on shares outstanding upon completion of this offering. This represents an immediate increase in pro forma net tangible book value at March 31, 2016 of \$0.36 per share to existing stockholders and an immediate dilution of \$1.92 per share to new investors.

Dilution per share represents the difference between the price per share to be paid for the shares of common stock sold by us in this offering and the pro forma net tangible book value per share immediately after this offering. The following table illustrates this per share dilution for purchasers of common stock in this offering:

Public offering price per share		\$ 4.00
Net tangible book value per share as of March 31, 2016	\$ 1.72	
Increase per share attributable to new investors in this offering	0.36	
Net tangible book value per share after this offering		2.08
Dilution per share to new investors in this offering		\$ 1.92

The information above is based on 19,768,724 shares outstanding as of March 31, 2016, and 24,268,724 shares outstanding upon completion of this offering and excludes as of this date 599,367 shares of our common stock available as of that date for future grant or issuance pursuant to our incentive compensation plan.

# **CAPITALIZATION**

The following table sets forth our cash, cash equivalents and capitalization as of March 31, 2016:

- on an actual basis;
- on an as adjusted basis reflecting the application of the net proceeds from this offering, assuming no exercise of the underwriter s overallotment options and after deducting approximately \$1.0 million for underwriting discounts payable by us and estimated offering expenses of approximately \$0.5 million, as set forth under Use of Proceeds.

You should read the following table in conjunction with Use of Proceeds in this prospectus supplement and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our audited consolidated financial statements and the related notes included in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2016, which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

	At March 31, 2016		
	Actual	As Adjusted	
		ousands, except	
		data)	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 14,919	\$ 18,284	
Debt and put liabilities:			
Current maturities of long-term debt(1)	4,857	4,857	
Long-term debt:	·		
Equipment-based credit facility(2)	28,973	15,873	
Notes payable for transportation and construction equipment and other	3,157	3,157	
Less current maturities of long-term debt	(4,857)	(4,857)	
Total long-term debt	27,273	14,173	
Members interest subject to mandatory redemption and undistributed			
earnings(3)	46,211	46,211	
Total debt and put liabilities	78,341	65,241	
Sterling stockholders equity:			
Preferred stock, \$0.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding			
Common stock, \$0.01 par value, 28,000,000 shares authorized; 19,768,724			
shares issued and outstanding, actual; 24,268,724 shares issued and			
outstanding, as adjusted	198	243	
Additional paid-in capital	188,534	204,954	
Retained deficit	(99,828)	(99,828)	
Total Sterling common stockholders equity	88,904	105,369	

Total capitalization \$ 167,245 \$ 170,610

(1) We had two capital leases at March 31, 2016 of \$0.5 million. Our policy is to account for capital leases, which transfer substantially all the benefits and risks incident to the ownership of the leased property to us, as the acquisition of an asset and the incurrence of an obligation. Under this method of accounting, the recorded value of the leased asset is amortized principally using the straight-line method over its estimated useful life and the obligation, including interest thereon, is reduced through payments over the life of the lease. Depreciation expense on equipment subject to capital leases and the related accumulated depreciation is included with that of owned equipment.

S-13

- Our equipment-based credit facility in place on March 31, 2016 consisted of a \$20.0 million term loan and a \$20.0 million revolving loan. The aggregate outstanding balances of our equipment-based credit facility may not exceed the lesser of \$40.0 million or 65% of the appraised value of the collateral pledged for the loans. The average interest rate on revolving debt outstanding during the three months ended March 31, 2016 was approximately 12%.
- (3) Mandatory redemption is based on the death or disability of the interest holders which is not expected to occur within the next five years. Undistributed earnings can be distributed upon unanimous consent from the members and for tax distributions. At this time, we cannot predict when such distributions will be made. Refer to Note 2 in the footnotes to our consolidated financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 and Note 6 in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2016 for further information.

S-14

## **UNDERWRITING**

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the underwriting agreement, D.A. Davidson & Co. has agreed to purchase, and we have agreed to sell to such underwriter, 4,500,000 shares of common stock.

The underwriter is offering the shares of common stock subject to its acceptance of the shares from us. The underwriting agreement provides that the obligation of the underwriter to purchase the shares of common stock offered by this prospectus supplement is subject to the satisfaction of the conditions contained in the underwriting agreement. The underwriter must purchase all of the shares of common stock offered hereby if any of the shares are purchased, except for the shares covered by the over-allotment option described below, unless and until the option is exercised.

The underwriter has advised us that it proposes to offer the shares of common stock directly to the public at the public offering price set forth on the cover page of this prospectus supplement, and to dealers at the public offering price less a selling concession not in excess of \$0.12 per share. The underwriter also may allow, and dealers may reallow, a concession not in excess of \$0.10 per share to brokers and dealers. After the offering, the underwriter may change the offering price and other selling terms. Our common stock is offered subject to receipt and acceptance thereof by the underwriter and to the other conditions set forth in the underwriting agreement, including the right to reject orders in whole or in part. We and the underwriter will determine the offering price of our common stock through negotiation. This price will not necessarily reflect the price at which investors in the market will be willing to buy and sell our shares following this offering.

# **Over-Allotment Option**

We have granted the underwriter an option to purchase up to 675,000 additional shares of our common stock at the public offering price less the underwriting discount. The underwriter may exercise this option solely for the purpose of covering over-allotments, if any, made in connection with the offering of the shares of common stock offered by this prospectus supplement. The underwriter may exercise this option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time for 30 days from the date of the underwriting agreement. To the extent that the underwriter exercises this option, the underwriter will be committed, as long as the conditions of the underwriting agreement are satisfied, to purchase the shares of common stock, and we will be obligated to sell the shares of common stock to the underwriter. If purchased, the additional shares will be sold by the underwriter on the same terms as those on which the other shares are sold. We will pay the expenses associated with the exercise of this option.

## **Directed Share Program**

At our request, the underwriter has reserved up to 225,000 of the shares of our common stock to be sold in this offering for sale under the Directed Share Program, at the public offering price, to current directors, officers, employees, and related persons. Reserved shares purchased by our directors and executive officers will be subject to the lock-up provisions described below. The number of shares of our common stock available for sale to the general public will be reduced to the extent reserved shares are sold to participants under the Directed Share Program. Any reserved shares that are not so purchased will be offered by the underwriter to the general public on the same basis as the other shares offered by this prospectus supplement, except that the underwriter will reserve these shares specifically for purchase by these participants.

Mr. Paul Varello, our Chief Executive Officer, has indicated his preliminary interest in purchasing shares of our common stock in this offering at the public offering price for an aggregate purchase price of approximately \$500,000. No participants in our Directed Share Program, including Mr. Varello, have any obligation or have made any

commitment to purchase any of the shares in this offering, and there can be no assurance as to the number of shares in this offering they may purchase, if any.

S-15

## **Underwriting Discount and Offering Expenses**

The following table shows the per share and total public offering price, underwriting discount to be paid to the underwriter, and the net proceeds to us before expenses. This information is presented assuming both no exercise and full exercise by the underwriter of its over-allotment option.

		Total		
		Without Over-	With Full Over-	
		Allotment	Allotment	
	Per Share	Exercise	Exercise	
Public offering price	\$ 4.00	\$ 18,000,000	\$20,700,000	
Underwriting discount payable by us	\$ 0.23	\$ 1,035,000	\$ 1,190,250	
Proceeds, before expenses, to us	\$ 3.77	\$ 16,965,000	\$ 19,509,750	

We have agreed to reimburse the underwriter for up to \$200,000 of fees and expenses it incurs in connection with the performance of its obligations in this offering. We estimate that the expenses of this offering payable by us, exclusive of the underwriting discount, will be approximately \$0.5 million.

## **Stabilizing Transactions**

In connection with the offering, the underwriter may purchase and sell our common stock in the open market. These transactions may include over-allotment and stabilizing transactions, syndicate covering transactions and penalty bids.

- Over-allotment transactions involve sales by the underwriter of shares in excess of the number of shares the underwriter is obligated to purchase, which creates a syndicate short position. The short position may be either a covered short position or a naked short position. In a covered short position, the number of shares over-allotted by the underwriter is not greater than the number of shares that it may purchase under the over-allotment option. In a naked short position, the number of shares involved is greater than the number of shares in the over-allotment option. The underwriter may close out any short position by exercising its over-allotment option and/or purchasing shares in the open market.
- Stabilizing transactions consist of bids or purchases of our common stock made to prevent or retard a decline in the market price of our common stock.
- Syndicate covering transactions involve purchases of our common stock in the open market after the distribution has been completed in order to cover syndicate short positions. If an underwriter sells more shares than it is obligated to purchase (i.e., a naked short position), the position can only be closed out by buying shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if an underwriter is concerned that there could be downward pressure on the price of the common stock in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase shares in this offering.

• Penalty bids permit the underwriter to reclaim a selling concession from a selling group member when the common stock originally sold by the member is purchased in a stabilizing or syndicate covering transaction to cover syndicate short positions.

These activities may stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the market price of our common stock, which may be greater than the price that might otherwise prevail in the open market. These activities, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time. These transactions may be effected on the Nasdaq, in the over-the-counter market or otherwise. Neither we nor the underwriter makes any representation or prediction as to the effect that the transactions described above may have on the market price of the shares.

A prospectus in electronic format may be made available on web sites maintained by the underwriter or selling group members, if any, participating in this offering, and the underwriter may distribute prospectuses

S-16

electronically. The underwriter may agree to allocate a number of shares to selling group members for sale to their online brokerage account holders. Internet distributions will be allocated by the underwriter and selling group members that will make internet distributions on the same basis as other allocations.

## **Lock-Up Agreements**

We and our executive officers and directors have agreed with the underwriter that, during the period ending 90 days after the date of this prospectus supplement, which we refer to as the restricted period, none of us will, without the prior consent of the underwriter, directly or indirectly, offer, sell or otherwise dispose of any shares of common stock or any securities which may be converted into or exchanged or exercised for any such shares of common stock, or enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to another person, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of our common stock. The restricted period is subject to a limited extension if shares of our common stock are not actively traded securities, as defined in Rule 101(c)(1) of Regulation M under the Exchange Act.

The foregoing restrictions do not apply to:

- the sale by us of shares of common stock to the underwriter;
- the issuance by us of shares of common stock pursuant to, or the grant of options under, our existing equity incentive plan;
- the sale of shares of common stock pursuant to existing Rule 10b5-1 trading plans implemented by certain of our executive officers;
- the sale of shares of common stock acquired in the public market after the closing of this offering; or
- transfers of shares of common stock or securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for common stock by any of the persons subject to a lock-up agreement (a) as bona fide gift or gifts, (b) by will or intestacy or (c) to any affiliate or member of such person s immediate family or a trust created for the direct or indirect benefit of such person or the immediate family thereof; provided that, in any such case the transferee or transferees shall execute and deliver to the underwriter, before such transfer, an agreement to be bound by the restrictions on transfer described above.

In addition, during the restricted period, subject to certain exceptions, we have also agreed not to file any registration statement for the registration of any shares of common stock or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for common stock without the prior written consent of the underwriter.

## Indemnification

We will indemnify the underwriter against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act. If we are unable to provide this indemnification, we will contribute to payments that the underwriter may be required to make in respect of those liabilities.

# **Other Relationships**

The underwriter and its affiliates have provided and may in the future provide various investment banking and other financial advisory services for us and our affiliates, for which services they have received and may in the future receive customary fees and reimbursement of expenses. In addition, from time to time, the underwriter and its affiliates may effect transactions for their own account or the account of customers, and hold on behalf of themselves or their customers, long or short positions in our common stock, and may do so in the future. The underwriter has advised us that, except as specifically contemplated in the underwriting agreement, it owes no fiduciary or other duties to us in connection with this offering, and it has agreements and relationships with, and owes duties to, third parties, including potential purchasers of the securities in this offering, that may create actual, potential or apparent conflicts of interest between the underwriter and us.

S-17

## **LEGAL MATTERS**

The validity of the shares of common stock offered in this prospectus will be passed upon for us by Andrews Kurth LLP, Houston, Texas. Certain legal matters related to this offering will be passed upon for the underwriter by Stoel Rives LLP, Seattle, Washington.

#### **EXPERTS**

The audited consolidated financial statements of Sterling Construction Company, Inc. as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015 and management s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015 incorporated in this prospectus supplement by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, as amended, have been so incorporated by reference in reliance upon the reports of Grant Thornton LLP, independent registered public accountants, upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

## WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act and file reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. We have filed with the SEC a registration statement to register the common stock offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, which forms part of the registration statement, do not contain all of the information included in the registration statement. For further information about us and the common stock offered in this prospectus supplement, you should refer to the registration statement and its exhibits. You may read and copy the registration statement and any other document that we file with the SEC at the SEC s Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the Public Reference Room. In addition, the SEC maintains a web site that contains registration statements, reports, proxy statements and other information regarding registrants, such as us, that file electronically with the SEC. The address of the web site is www.sec.gov.

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference the information we file with the SEC. This means that we can disclose important information to you without actually including the specific information in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus by referring you to those documents. These other documents contain important information about us, our financial condition and our results of operations. The information incorporated by reference is an important part of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. Information that we file with the SEC after the date of this prospectus supplement and until the termination of this offering and that is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, will automatically update information contained in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and in the other documents previously filed with the SEC, and may replace or supersede information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

We incorporated the documents listed below and any future filings we make with the SEC under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (excluding any information furnished under Items 2.02 or 7.01 on any Current Report on Form 8-K) after the date of this prospectus supplement and until the termination of this offering. These documents contain important information about us, our financial condition and our results of operations.

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, as amended;

- · Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2016;
- · Current Reports on Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on February 26, 2016; March 14, 2016; and March 15, 2016; and

S-18

• The description of our common stock contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A, filed on January 11, 2006, including any amendment or report updating the description.

Any statements made in a document incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement are deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus supplement to the extent that a statement in this prospectus supplement or in any other subsequently filed document, which is also incorporated by reference, modifies or supersedes the statement. Any statement made or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is deemed to be modified or superseded to the extent a statement in any subsequently filed document, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, modifies or supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus.

The information relating to us contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus should be read together with the information in the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein. In addition, certain information, including financial information, contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus or incorporated by reference herein or therein should be read in conjunction with documents we have filed with the SEC.

You may obtain copies of any documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and other documents we have filed with the SEC through the SEC s website at the address provided above. You also may request, without charge, a copy of any incorporated document (excluding exhibits, unless we have specifically incorporated an exhibit in an incorporated document) by writing or telephoning us at our principal executive offices at the following address:

Sterling Construction Company, Inc.

Attention: Chief Financial Officer

1800 Hughes Landing Boulevard

Suite 250

The Woodlands, Texas 77380

(281) 214-0800

S-19

## **PROSPECTUS**

# \$80,000,000

**Sterling Construction Company, Inc.** 

Common Stock

Preferred Stock

**Depositary Shares** 

**Debt Securities** 

Warrants

#### Units

We may from time to time offer our common stock, preferred stock (which we may issue in one or more series), depositary shares, debt securities (which we may issue in one or more issuances), warrants entitling the holders to purchase one or more classes or series of these securities or units consisting of two or more of these issuances, classes or series of securities. We will determine when we sell securities, the amounts and types of securities we will sell and the prices and other terms on which we will sell them. We may sell securities to or through underwriters or agents or directly to purchasers.

We will describe in a prospectus supplement, which we will deliver with this prospectus, the terms of particular securities which we offer in the future. We may describe the terms of those securities in a term sheet which will precede the prospectus supplement.

In each prospectus supplement we will include the following information:

- the names of the underwriters or agents, if any, through which we will sell the securities;
- the proposed amounts of securities, if any, which the underwriters will purchase;
- the compensation, if any, of those underwriters or agents;
- the major risk factors associated with the securities offered;

- the initial public offering price of the securities, if there is one;
- · information about securities exchanges or automated quotation systems on which the securities will be listed or traded; and
- any other material information about the offering and sale of the securities.

  Our common stock is listed for trading on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol STRL.

Investing in our securities involves risks. Please read Risk Factors beginning on page 3 of this prospectus.

You should carefully read this prospectus, any applicable prospectus supplement and the information described under the headings. Where You Can Find More Information and Incorporation by Reference before you invest in any of these securities. This prospectus may not be used to sell securities unless it is accompanied by a prospectus supplement that describes those securities.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved the securities we may be offering or determined that this prospectus is accurate or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is April 29, 2014.

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	Page
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	1
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	1
STERLING CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.	3
RISK FACTORS	3
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES	3
<u>USE OF PROCEEDS</u>	4
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	4
DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES	5
DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES	7
DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS	10
DESCRIPTION OF UNITS	10
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	11
LEGAL MATTERS	11
EXPERTS	11
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	11
INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE	12

#### ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission using a shelf registration process. Under this shelf registration process, we may sell any of, or any combination of, the securities described in this prospectus from time to time in one or more offerings for a total offering price that will not exceed \$80,000,000. This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities we may offer. Each time we offer to sell securities, we will file with the SEC a prospectus supplement that describes the specific securities that are being offered and the terms on which they are being offered. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. If there is any inconsistency between the information in this prospectus and that in any prospectus supplement, you should rely on the information provided in the prospectus supplement. This prospectus does not contain all of the information included in the registration statement. The registration statement filed with the SEC includes exhibits that provide more details about the matters discussed in this prospectus. You should carefully read this prospectus, the related exhibits filed with the SEC and any prospectus supplement, together with the additional information described below under the headings. Where You Can Find More Information and Documents Incorporated by Reference.

Nobody has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations, other than those contained or incorporated in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus supplement. If given or made, that information or those representations may not be relied upon as having been authorized by us. This prospectus does not constitute an offer to, or a solicitation of, any person in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or solicitation would be unlawful. The information contained in this prospectus is accurate only as of the date of this prospectus, regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectus or any sale of our securities. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since that date.

#### FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference into it include statements that are, or may be considered to be, forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These forward-looking statements are included throughout this prospectus and in the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus and relate to matters such as our industry, business strategy, goals and expectations concerning our market position, future operations, margins, profitability, capital expenditures, liquidity and capital resources and other financial and operating information. We have used the words anticipate, assume, believe. budget, continue. could. estimate, intend, potential, would and similar terms and ph may, plan, predict, project, should, will, forward-looking statements in this prospectus.

Forward-looking statements reflect our current expectations as of the date of this prospectus, or the dates of documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus, regarding future events, results or outcomes. These expectations may or may not be realized. Some of these expectations may be based upon assumptions or judgments that prove to be incorrect. In addition, our business and operations involve numerous risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, that could result in our expectations not being realized or otherwise could materially affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Actual events, results and outcomes may differ materially from our expectations due to a variety of factors. Although it is not possible to identify all of these factors, they include, among others, the following:

 changes in general economic conditions, including recessions, reductions in federal, state and local government funding for infrastructure services and changes in those governments budgets, practices, laws and regulations;

1

- delays or difficulties related to the completion of our projects, including additional costs, reductions in revenues or the payment of liquidated damages, or delays or difficulties related to obtaining required governmental permits and approvals;
- · actions of suppliers, subcontractors, design engineers, joint venture partners, customers, competitors, banks, surety companies and others which are beyond our control, including suppliers, subcontractors, and joint venture partners failure to perform;
- things that affect the accuracy of estimates inherent in our percentage-of-completion accounting
  policies, including onsite conditions that differ materially from those assumed in our original bids,
  contract modifications, mechanical problems with our machinery or equipment and effects of other risks
  discussed in this document;
- · design/build contracts, which subject us to the risk of design errors and omissions;
- cost escalations associated with our contracts, including changes in availability, proximity and cost of
  materials such as steel, cement, concrete, aggregates, oil, fuel and other construction materials, and cost
  escalations associated with subcontractors and labor;
- our dependence on a limited number of significant customers;
- adverse weather conditions; although we prepare our budgets and bid contracts based on historical rain and snowfall patterns, the incidence of rain, snow, hurricanes, etc., may differ materially from these expectations;
- the presence of competitors with greater financial resources or lower margin requirements than ours, and the impact of competitive bidders on our ability to obtain new backlog at reasonable margins acceptable to us;
- · our ability to successfully identify, finance, complete and integrate acquisitions;
- · citations issued by governmental authorities, including the Occupational Safety and Health Administration;
- federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations under which non-compliance can result in penalties and/or termination of contracts as well as civil and criminal liability;

- · adverse economic conditions in our markets; and
- the other factors discussed in more detail in the documents referred to in the section captioned Risk Factors.

In reading this prospectus and the documents incorporated into this prospectus by reference, you should consider these factors carefully in evaluating any forward-looking statements and you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. Although we believe that our plans, intentions and expectations reflected in, or suggested by, the forward-looking statements that we make in this prospectus or the documents incorporated by reference into it are reasonable, we can provide no assurance that they will be achieved.

2

## STERLING CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.

As used in this prospectus, all references to Sterling, Sterling Construction, SCC, we, us and our refer to Ster Construction Company, Inc. and its subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated or indicated by context.

We are a leading heavy civil construction company that specializes in the building and reconstruction of transportation and water infrastructure projects in Texas, Utah, Nevada, Arizona, California, Hawaii and other states where there are construction opportunities. Our transportation infrastructure projects include highways, roads, bridges and light rail and our water infrastructure projects include water, wastewater and storm drainage systems. Sterling provides general contracting services primarily to public sector clients, including excavating, concrete and asphalt paving, installation of large-diameter water and wastewater distribution systems, construction of bridges and similar large structures, construction of light rail infrastructure, concrete batch plant operations, concrete crushing and aggregates. Sterling performs the majority of the work required by its contracts with its own crews and equipment.

We are a Delaware corporation. Our principal executive offices are located at 20810 Fernbush Lane, Houston, Texas 77073, and our telephone number at this address is (281) 821 9091. Our website is *www.sterlingconstructionco.com*. Information on, or accessible through, this website is not a part of, and is not incorporated into, this prospectus.

## **RISK FACTORS**

An investment in our securities involves various risks. Before making an investment in our securities, you should carefully consider the risks outlined in Item 1A. Risk Factors of our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, as well as the information contained in this prospectus and in the prospectus supplements relating to particular offers of securities. Any of those risk factors could significantly and adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations, and the trading price of our securities. Although we describe, and will describe, what we believe to be the principal risks related to our Company and the securities we offer, we can also be affected by risks we do not anticipate or do not think will have a material effect upon us.

## RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

The following table sets forth our ratios of earnings to fixed charges on a consolidated basis for the periods shown. You should read these ratios of earnings to fixed charges in connection with our consolidated financial statements, including the notes to those statements, incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

	Years Ended December 31				
	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges (1)(2)	46.0x	19.6x		16.4x	

- (1) For purposes of determining the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, earnings are defined as net income before noncontrolling owners interests and fixed charges less capitalized interest. Fixed charges consist of interest (whether expensed or capitalized) and related amortization of capitalized interest and interest included in rent.
- (2) For the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2013, we had earnings to fixed charges deficiencies of \$34.7 million and \$70.0 million respectively.

## **USE OF PROCEEDS**

When we offer particular securities, we will describe in the Prospectus Supplement relating to the securities how we intend to use the proceeds of the sale of those securities.

## DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

Our authorized capital stock consists of 19,000,000 shares of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, and 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share, the rights and preferences of which may be established from time to time by our board of directors. On March 13, 2014, our board of directors adopted, subject to the approval of the stockholders, an amendment to our certificate of incorporation to increase the number of shares of common stock that we are authorized to issue from 19,000,000 shares to 28,000,000 shares. Approval of the amendment requires the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of our outstanding shares of common stock. If the amendment is approved by the stockholders at the annual meeting of stockholders on May 9, 2014, it will become effective when it is filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, which the company intends to do promptly after the annual meeting. At March 23, 2014, there were 16,677,094 shares of common stock and no shares of preferred stock outstanding.

## **Common Stock**

Holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote for each share on all matters voted upon by our stockholders, including the election of directors, and do not have cumulative voting rights. Subject to the rights of holders of any preferred stock we may issue, our common stockholders are entitled to participate equally and ratably in (i) any dividends that may be declared by our board of directors and (ii) our net assets upon our dissolution or liquidation after payment or provision for all liabilities and any preferential liquidation rights of holders of any preferred stock that we may issue and is then outstanding. Holders of our common stock do not have preemptive rights to purchase shares of our stock. The shares of our common stock are not subject to any redemption provisions and are not convertible into any other shares of our capital stock. The rights, preferences and privileges of holders of our common stock will be subject to those of the holders of any shares of our preferred stock we may issue in the future.

## **Preferred Stock**

Our board of directors may, from time to time, authorize the issuance of one or more classes or series of preferred stock by adopting resolutions that establish the number of shares being authorized and describing the designations, powers, preferences and rights, qualifications, limitations or restrictions on shares of that preferred stock, including dividend rights, terms of redemption, conversion rights and liquidation preferences.

The issuance of preferred stock may adversely affect the rights of our common stockholders by, among other things:

- · restricting dividends on the common stock;
- · diluting the voting power of the common stock;
- · impairing the liquidation rights of the common stock; or

• delaying or preventing a change in control without further action by holders of the preferred stock. As a result of these or other factors, the issuance of preferred stock could have an adverse impact on the market price of our common stock.

4

## Provisions of Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, or DGCL, the power to adopt, amend or repeal bylaws is conferred upon the stockholders. A corporation may, however, in its certificate of incorporation also confer upon the board of directors the power to adopt, amend or repeal its bylaws. Our certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws grant our board the power to adopt, amend and repeal our bylaws by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors constituting the entire board. Our stockholders may adopt, amend or repeal our bylaws, with the approval of holders of a majority in voting power of all outstanding voting stock.

Our certificate of incorporation provides that our board of directors will be divided into three classes of directors, with the classes to be as nearly equal in number as possible. As a result, approximately one-third of our board of directors will be elected each year. The classification of directors has the effect of making it more difficult for stockholders to change the composition of our board, and could make it more difficult for someone who wants to take control of us to do so.

On November 8, 2013, our board of directors adopted, subject to the approval of the stockholders, an amendment to our certificate of incorporation to phase out the classes of the board over a three-year period beginning with the 2015 annual meeting of stockholders. Approval of the amendment requires the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of our outstanding shares of common stock. If the amendment is approved by the stockholders at the annual meeting on May 9, 2014, it will become effective when it is filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, which the company intends to do promptly after the annual meeting.

When there is a classified board of directors, the DGCL provides that stockholders may remove directors only for cause, unless a company s certificate of incorporation otherwise provides. Our certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws do not permit the removal of directors other than for cause. This requirement may deter third parties from making a tender offer or acquiring our common stock through open market purchases in order to obtain control of us because they could not use their acquired voting power to remove existing directors.

Our certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws provide that special meetings of our stockholders may be called only by our board of directors. Stockholders are not able to call special meetings. The inability of our stockholders to call special meetings may delay proxy contests until our annual stockholders meeting, which might impact a person s decision to purchase our voting securities in an attempt to cause a change in control of us.

Our certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws provide that stockholders may take action only at an annual or special meeting of the stockholders. Stockholders may not act by written consent. The inability of our stockholders to act by written consent could lengthen the amount of time required for our stock holders to take actions, which could discourage, delay or prevent a potential effort to take control of us.

#### **Transfer Agent and Registrar**

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is American Stock Transfer & Trust Company.

## **DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES**

We may issue depositary receipts representing interests, which are called depository shares, in shares of our common stock or of particular series of preferred stock. If we did that, we would deposit the common or preferred stock which is the subject of depositary shares with a depositary, which would hold that common or preferred stock for the benefit of the holders of the depositary shares, in accordance with a deposit agreement between the depositary and us. The

holders of depositary shares would be entitled to all the rights and preferences of the common or preferred stock to which the depositary shares relate, including dividend, voting, conversion, redemption and liquidation rights, to the extent of their interests in that common or preferred stock.

While the deposit agreement relating to common stock or a particular series of preferred stock may have provisions applicable solely to common stock or that series of preferred stock, all deposit agreements relating to common or preferred stock we issue would include the following provisions:

Dividends and Other Distributions. Each time we pay a cash dividend or make any other type of cash distribution with regard to the common stock or to the preferred stock of a series, the depositary will distribute to the holder of record of each depositary share relating to that common stock or to that series of preferred stock, an amount equal to the dividend or other distribution per depositary share the depositary receives. If there is a distribution of property other than cash, the depositary either will distribute the property to the holders of depositary shares in proportion to the depositary shares held by each of them, or the depositary will, if we approve, sell the property and distribute the net proceeds to the holders of the depositary shares in proportion to the depositary shares held by them.

Withdrawal of Common or Preferred Stock. A holder of depositary shares will be entitled to receive, upon surrender of depositary receipts representing depositary shares, the number of shares of the applicable common stock or series of preferred stock, and any money or other property, to which the depositary shares relate.

Redemption of Depositary Shares. Whenever we redeem shares of a series of preferred stock held by a depositary, the depositary will be required to redeem, on the same redemption date, depositary shares relating, in total, to the number of shares of that series held by the depositary which we redeem, subject to the depositary s receiving the redemption price of those shares. If fewer than all the depositary shares relating to a series are to be redeemed, the depositary shares to be redeemed will be selected by lot or by another method we determine to be equitable.

*Voting*. Any time we send a notice of meeting or other materials relating to a meeting to the holders of common stock or a series of preferred stock to which depositary shares relate, we will provide the depositary with sufficient copies of those materials so they can be sent to all holders of record of the applicable depositary shares, and the depositary will send those materials to the holders of record of the depositary shares on the record date for the meeting. The depositary will solicit voting instructions from holders of depositary shares and will vote or not vote the common or preferred stock to which the depositary shares relate in accordance with those instructions.

Liquidating Distributions. Upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the holder of each depositary share will be entitled to what the holder of the depositary share would have received if the holder had owned the number of shares of common stock or of the series of preferred stock which is represented by the depositary share.

Conversion. If shares of a series of preferred stock are convertible into common stock or other of our securities or property, holders of depositary shares relating to that series of preferred stock will, if they surrender depositary receipts representing depositary shares with appropriate instructions to convert them, receive the shares of common stock or other securities or property into which the number of shares of the series of preferred stock to which the depositary shares relate could at the time be converted.

Amendment and Termination of a Deposit Agreement. We and the depositary may amend a deposit agreement, except that an amendment which materially and adversely affects the rights of holders of depositary shares, or would be materially and adversely inconsistent with the rights granted to the holders of common stock or the series of preferred stock to which they relate, will have to be approved by holders of at least two-thirds of the applicable depositary shares. No amendment will impair the right of a holder of depositary shares to surrender the depositary receipts evidencing those depositary shares and receive the common or preferred stock to which they relate, except as required to comply with law. We may terminate a deposit agreement with the consent of holders of a majority of the depositary shares to which it relates. Upon termination of a deposit

6

agreement, the depositary will make the shares of common or preferred stock to which the depositary shares issued under the deposit agreement relate available to the holders of those depositary shares. A deposit agreement will automatically terminate if:

- · all outstanding depositary shares to which it relates have been withdrawn, redeemed or converted, or
- the depositary has made a final distribution to the holders of the depositary shares issued under the deposit agreement upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Miscellaneous. There will be provisions (i) requiring the depositary to forward to holders of record of depositary shares any reports or communications from us which the depositary receives with respect to the common or preferred stock to which the depositary shares relate, (ii) regarding compensation of the depositary, (iii) regarding resignation of the depositary, (iv) limiting our liability and the liability of the depositary under the deposit agreement (usually to failure to act in good faith, gross negligence or willful misconduct) and (v) indemnifying the depositary against certain possible liabilities.

## **DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES**

We do not currently have any outstanding debt securities and, therefore, we are not a party to an indenture governing debt securities we have issued or may issue. Any debt securities that we offer in the future using this prospectus will be issued in accordance with an indenture, and possibly one or more supplements to an indenture, meeting the requirements of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended.

As used in this description, the words Sterling, we, us and our refer to Sterling Construction Company, Inc., and no any of its subsidiaries or affiliates.

#### General

The debt securities will be direct, unsecured obligations of our company and may be either senior debt securities or subordinated debt securities. We may issue debt securities in one or more issuances or series. An indenture, or a supplemental indenture, will set forth specific terms of each issue or series of debt securities. There will be prospectus supplements relating to particular issues or series of debt securities. Each prospectus supplement will describe:

- the title of the debt securities and whether the debt securities are senior or subordinated debt securities;
- the total principal amount of the debt securities we are offering by that prospectus supplement;
- the date or dates on which principal of the debt securities will be payable and the amount of principal which will be payable;

.

the rate or rates (which may be fixed or variable) at which the debt securities will bear interest, if any, or contingent interest, if any, as well as the dates from which interest will accrue, the dates on which interest will be payable, the persons to whom interest will be payable, if other than the registered holders on the record date, and the record date for the interest payable on any payment date;

- the currency in which principal and interest, and any premium, will be payable;
- the place or places where principal, premium, if any, and interest, if any, on the debt securities will be payable and where debt securities which are in registered form can be presented for registration of transfer or exchange;

7

- any provisions regarding our right to prepay debt securities or of holders to require us to prepay debt securities;
- the right, if any, of holders of the debt securities to convert them into common stock or other securities, including any contingent conversion provisions;
- any provisions requiring or permitting us to make payments to a sinking fund which will be used to redeem debt securities or a purchase fund which will be used to purchase debt securities;
- the percentage of the principal amount of the debt securities which is payable if maturity of the debt securities is accelerated because of a default;
- · any special or modified events of default or covenants with respect to the debt securities; and
- · any other material terms of the debt securities.

If payments with regard to any debt securities are or may be payable in a currency other than U.S. dollars, we will describe in the prospectus supplement by which we offer the debt securities any restrictions on currency conversions and any material tax or other considerations relating to the fact that payments will or may not be made in U.S. dollars.

We may issue debt securities at a discount from, or at a premium to, their stated principal amount. A prospectus supplement may describe federal income tax considerations and other special considerations applicable to a debt security issued with original issue discount or a premium.

#### **Form of Debt Securities**

We may issue debt securities in certificated or uncertificated form, in registered form with or without coupons or in bearer form with coupons.

We may issue debt securities of an issue or a series in the form of one or more global certificates evidencing all or a portion of the aggregate principal amount of the debt securities of that issue or series. We may deposit the global certificates with depositaries, and the global certificates may be subject to restrictions upon transfer and may or may not permit exchange for debt securities in individually certificated form.

#### **Events of Default and Remedies**

An event of default with respect to each issue or series of debt securities will include:

• our default in payment of the principal of or premium, if any, on any debt securities of the issue or series beyond any applicable grace period;

- our default for 30 days, or a different period specified in the indenture or a supplemental indenture, which may be no period, in payment of any installment of interest due with regard to debt securities of the issue or series;
- our default for 90 days after notice, or a different period specified in the indenture or a supplemental indenture, which may be no period, in the observance or performance of any covenant set forth in the indenture;
- · certain events involving our bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization.

8

Indentures or supplemental indentures relating to particular issues or series of debt securities may include other events of default.

An indenture or supplemental indenture may provide that the trustee may withhold notice to the holders of any issue or series of debt securities of any default (except a default in payment of principal, premium, if any, or interest, if any) if the trustee considers it in the interest of the holders to do so.

If an event of default for any issue or series of debt securities occurs and continues, the trustee or the holders of a specified percentage in aggregate principal amount of the debt securities of the issue or series may have the right to declare the entire principal of all of the debt securities of that issue or series to be due and payable immediately. If this happens, subject to certain conditions, the holders of a specified percentage of the aggregate principal amount of the debt securities of that issue or series may be able to void the declaration.

Other than its duties in case of a default, a trustee will not obligated to exercise any of its rights or powers under any indenture or supplemental indenture at the request, order or direction of any holders, unless the holders offer the trustee reasonable indemnity. If they provide this reasonable indemnification, the holders of a majority in principal amount outstanding of an issue or series of debt securities may direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding or any remedy available to the trustee, or exercising any power conferred upon the trustee, for any series of debt securities.

A prospectus supplement will describe any additional or different events of default which apply to any issue or series of debt securities and any additional or different rights of security holders if there is an event of default.

## **Modification of an Indenture**

We and the trustee under an indenture may:

- without the consent of holders of debt securities, modify the indenture to cure errors, clarify ambiguities
  or make changes to any provision of an indenture that does not adversely affect the rights or interests of
  debt securities issued under that indenture;
- with the consent of the holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the debt securities which are outstanding under an indenture, modify that indenture or the rights of the holders of the debt securities generally; and
- with the consent of the holders of not less than a majority in outstanding principal amount of any issue or series of debt securities, modify any supplemental indenture relating solely to that issue or series of debt securities or the rights of the holders of that issue or series of debt securities.

However, we may not:

• extend the fixed maturity of any debt securities, reduce the rate or extend the time for payment of interest, if any, on any debt securities, reduce the principal amount of any debt securities or the

premium, if any, on any debt securities, impair or affect the right of a holder to institute suit for the payment of principal, premium, if any, or interest, if any, with regard to any debt securities, change the currency in which any debt securities are payable or waive a redemption payment with respect to any debt security, without the consent of each holder of debt securities who will be affected, provided that any purchase or repurchase of debt securities shall not be deemed a redemption of the debt securities; or

 reduce the percentage of holders of debt securities required to consent to an amendment, supplement or waiver, without the consent of the holders of all the then outstanding debt securities or outstanding debt securities of a series, which will be affected.

9

## **Governing Law**

Each of our indentures, each supplemental indenture, and the debt securities issued under them will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of New York State.

## **Information Concerning the Trustee**

A banking or financial institution that meets the qualification requirements of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, will be the trustee under each indenture. Successor trustees may be appointed in accordance with the terms of the indentures.

#### **DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS**

We may issue warrants to purchase common stock, preferred stock, debt securities or units. Each issue of warrants will be the subject of a warrant agreement which will contain the terms of the warrants. We will distribute a prospectus supplement with regard to each issue of warrants. Each prospectus supplement will describe, as to the warrants to which it relates:

- the securities which may be purchased by exercising the warrants (which may be common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares, debt securities or units consisting of two or more of those types of securities);
- the exercise price of the warrants (which may be wholly or partly payable in cash or wholly or partly payable with other types of consideration);
- the period during which the warrants may be exercised;
- any provision adjusting the securities which may be purchased on exercise of the warrants and the exercise price of the warrants in order to prevent dilution or otherwise;
- the place or places where warrants can be presented for exercise or for registration of transfer or exchange; and
- any other material terms of the warrants.

As of December 31, 2013, we had no outstanding warrants.

## **DESCRIPTION OF UNITS**

We may issue securities in units, each consisting of two or more types of securities. For example, we might issue units consisting of a combination of debt securities and warrants to purchase common stock. If we issue units, the prospectus supplement relating to the units will contain the information described above with regard to each of the

securities that is a component of the units. In addition, each prospectus supplement relating to units will:

- state how long, if at all, the securities that are components of the units must be traded in units, and when they can be traded separately;
- state whether we will apply to have the units traded on a securities exchange or securities quotation system;
- describe how, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the purchase price paid for the units is to be allocated among the component securities.

10

## PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell the securities through underwriters, agents or dealers, or directly to one or more purchasers without using underwriters or agents. We will name any underwriter or agent involved in offering or selling our securities, and describe any commissions that we will pay to the underwriter or agent, in the applicable prospectus supplement.

If underwriters are used in a sale, the securities will be acquired by the underwriters for their own account. If we use an agent, the agent will usually commit to use its best efforts to help us find purchasers of the securities we are offering. An agent who does that may be deemed to be an underwriter for purposes of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The underwriters may resell the securities in one or more transactions (including block transactions), at negotiated prices, at a fixed public offering price or at varying prices determined at the time of sale. We will include the names of the managing underwriter(s), as well as any other underwriters, or the names of any agents, and the terms of the transaction, including the compensation the underwriters or agents and dealers will receive, in our prospectus supplement. We will also describe the principal terms of the underwriting agreement or other agreement relating to the offering.

If we use a dealer who is helping us find purchasers, we will include the name of the dealer and the terms of our transactions with the dealer in the applicable prospectus supplement.

We may directly solicit offers to purchase our securities, and we may directly sell our securities to institutional or other investors, without using agents or underwriters. If we do that, we will describe the terms of our direct sales in the applicable prospectus supplement.

#### **LEGAL MATTERS**

K&L Gates LLP, New York, New York, or other counsel selected by the Company with regard to a particular offering, who will be named in the prospectus supplement relating to that offering, will pass upon the validity of any securities we offer by this prospectus. If the validity of any securities is also passed upon by counsel for the underwriters of an offering of those securities, that counsel will be named in the prospectus supplement relating to that offering.

#### **EXPERTS**

The consolidated financial statements and management s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting incorporated by reference in this prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement have been so incorporated by reference in reliance upon the reports of Grant Thornton LLP, independent registered public accountants, upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

## WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports and other information with the SEC. You can read and copy any materials that we file with the SEC at the SEC s public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. You can request copies of these documents by writing to the SEC and paying a fee for the copying cost. You can call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for more information about the operation of the public reference rooms. Our SEC filings are also available at the SEC s Internet Web site at www.sec.gov.

11

#### INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

We disclose important information to you by referring you to documents that we have previously filed with the SEC or documents that we will file with the SEC in the future. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be an important part of this prospectus. We are incorporating by reference in this prospectus the following documents which we have previously filed with the SEC (other than any portions of the Current Reports on Form 8-K that were furnished pursuant to Item 2.02 or 7.01 of Form 8-K or other applicable SEC rules):

- (a) our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013;
- (b) our Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 21, 2014;
- (c) our Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on April 9, 2014, relating to our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders; and
- (d) the description of our common stock set forth in our Registration Statement on Form 8-A (File No. 000-19450), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 11, 2006, including any subsequent amendments or reports filed for the purpose of updating such description.

Whenever after the date of the initial registration statement of which this prospectus is a part, and prior to the termination of any offering made by this prospectus, we file reports or documents under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act, as amended, those reports and documents will be deemed to be part of this prospectus from the time they are filed. Any statements made in this prospectus or in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus will be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus to the extent that a statement contained in this prospectus or in any subsequently filed document that is also incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus modifies or supersedes the statement. Nothing in this prospectus will be deemed to incorporate information furnished by us on Form 8-K that under the rules of the SEC, is not deemed filed for purposes of the Securities Exchange Act.

You may request, without charge, a copy of any incorporated document (excluding exhibits, unless we have specifically incorporated an exhibit in an incorporated document) by writing or telephoning us at our principal executive offices at the following address:

Sterling Construction Company, Inc.

Attention: Brian Manning

20810 Fernbush Lane

Houston, Texas 77073

(281) 821-9091

12